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UNITED. STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF MARYLAND 

BALTIMORE DIVISION 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

LOMA INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS 
GROUP, INC., 

SERVICIOS LATINOAMERICANOS DE 
MARYLAND, INC., 

MANUEL E. ALBAN, individually and as 
director ofLOMA INTERNATIONAL 
BUSINESS GROUP, INC. and SERVICIOS 
LATINOAMERICANOS DE MARYLAND, 
INC., and 

LOLA P. ALBAN, an individual, 

Defeodants. 

Case No. ____ _ 

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT 
INJUNCTION AND OTHER 
EQUITABLE RELIEF 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (FTC), for its Complaint alleges: 

1. The FTC brings this action under Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission 

Act (FTC Act), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), to obtain temporary, preliminary, and p=anent injunctive 

relief, restitution, the refund of monies paid, disgorgement of ill-gotteo monies, the appointrneot 

of a: monitor, and other equitable relief for Defendants' acts or practices in violation of  of 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 

and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b). 

3. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 (b) and (c), and 15 U.S.C. 

§ 53(b). 
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times 
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DEFENDANTS' BUSINESS PRACTICo64
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18. Defendants sometimes commit errors or take actions timt cause hann to 

consumers' immigration standing. For example, in at 
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U.S. Department ofJustice under the requirements of 8 C.F.R. § 292.1 (2010) or 8 C.F.R. § 

1292.1 (2010). 

24. Neither Lorna nor Servicios is an organization recognized by 
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VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT 

27. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits "unfair or deceptive acts 

or practices in or affecting conunerce." 

28. Misrepresentations constitute deceptive acts or practices prohibited by Section 

5(a) of the FTC Act. 

Count] 

Misrepresentation That Defendants Are Authorized to Provide 
Immigration Services 

29. In numerous instances in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, 

sale, or provision of inunigration services, including selecting, preparing, and filing inunigration 

forms, Defendants have represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, that 

Defendants are authorized to provide inunigration services in the United States. 

30. In truth and in fact, Defendants are not authorized to provide immigration 

services in the United States. 

31. Therefore, Defendants' representation as set forth in Paragraph 29 of tllis 

Complaint is false and misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of 

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

32. Consumers have suffered and will continue to suffer substantial injury as a result 

of Defendants' violations of the FTC Act. In addition, Defendants have been unjustly enriched 

as a result of their unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive reliefby iliis Court, Defendants 

are likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and harm the public interest. 
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THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

33. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53 (b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunctive and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress violations 

of any provision oflaw enforced by the FTC. The Court, in the exercise of its equitable 

jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief, relief, may 




